
Neuadd Y Sir
Y Rhadyr
Brynbuga

NP15 1GA

Dydd Mawrth, 3 Gorffennaf 2018

Annwyl Cynghorydd
PENDERFYNIADIAU AELOD CABINET UNIGOL

Hysbysir drwy hyn y caiff y penderfyniadau dilynol a wnaed gan aelod o’r cabinet eu 
gwneud Dydd Mercher, 11eg Gorffennaf, 2018,.

AGENDA

1.  RECRIWTIO SWYDDOG GWEINYDDU GCGB

CABINET MEMBER: County Councillor S B Jones

AUTHOR: Christian Schmidt

CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 07471479238
E-mail: christianschmidt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

1 - 10

2.  DEDDF RHEOLI LLIFOGYDD A D?R 210 - AMSERLEN 3 - GWEITHREDU'R CORFF CYMERADWYO (SAB) DROS 
SYSTEMAU DRAENIO CYNALIADWY (SuDS)

CABINET MEMBER: County Councillor S B Jones

AUTHOR: Paul Keeble
Group Engineer (Highway & Flood Management)

CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel:          01633 644733
E-mail:     paulkeeble@monmouthshire.gov.uk

11 - 26

Yr eiddwch yn gywir,

Paul Matthews
Prif Weithredwr

Public Document Pack

mailto:paulkeeble@monmouthshire.gov.uk


PORTFFOLIOS CABINET

Cynghorydd Sir Maes Cyfrifoldeb
Gwaith 
Partneriaeth ac 
Allanol

Ward

P.A. Fox
(Arweinydd)

Strategaeth a Chyfeiriad Awdurdod Cyfan
CCR Cyd Gabinet a Datblygu Rhanbarthol; 
Trosolwg Sefydliad; Gweithio Rhanbarthol; 
Cysylltiadau Llywodraeth; Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus; WLGA

Cyngor WLGA 
WLGA Bwrdd 
Cydlynu 
Gwasanaethau 
Cyhoeddus

Porthysgewin

R.J.W. Greenland
(Dirprwy 
Arweinydd)

Menter
Cynllunio Defnydd Tir; Datblygu Economaidd; 
Twristiaeth; Rheoli Datblygu; Rheoli Adeiladu; 
Tai a Digartrefedd; Hamdden; Ieuenctid; 
Addysg Oedolion; Addysg Awyr Agored; 
Hybiau Cymunedol; Gwasanaethau 
Diwylliannol

Cyngor WLGA
Twristiaeth 
Rhanbarth y 
Brifddinas 

Devauden

P. Jordan Llywodraethiant
Cefnogaeth y Cyngor a Phenderfyniadau 
Gweithrediaeth; Craffu; Safonau Pwyllgor 
Rheoleiddiol; Llywodraethiant Cymunedol; 
Cefnogaeth Aelodaeth; Etholiadau; Hyrwyddo 
Democratiaeth ac Ymgysylltu: Y Gyfraith; 
Moeseg a Safonau; Perfformiad Awdurdod 
Cyfan; Cynllunio a Gwerthuso Gwasanaeth 
Awdurdod Cyfan; Cydlynu Corff Rheoleiddiol 

Cantref

R. John Plant a Phobl Ifanc
Safonau Ysgolion; Gwella Ysgolion; 
Llywodraethiant Ysgolion; Trosolwg EAS; 
Blynyddoedd Cynnar; Anghenion Dysgu 
Ychwanegol; Cynhwysiant; Cwricwlwm 
Estynedig; Derbyniadau; Dalgylchoedd; 
Cynnig Ôl-16; Cydlynu gyda Choleg Gwent.

Cyd Grŵp Addysg 
(EAS)
CBAC

Llanfihangel 
Troddi

P. Jones Gofal Cymdeithasol, Diogelu ac Iechyd
Plant; Oedolion; Maethu a Mabwysiadu; 
Gwasanaeth Troseddu Ieuenctid; Cefnogi 
Pobl; Diogelu Awdurdod Cyfan (Plant ac 
Oedolion); Anableddau; Iechyd Meddwl; 
Iechyd Cyhoeddus; Cydlynu Iechyd.

Rhaglan

P. Murphy Adnoddau
Cyllid; Technoleg Gwybodaeth (SRS); 
Adnoddau Dynol; Hyfforddiant; Iechyd a 
Diogelwch; Cynllunio Argyfwng; Caffaeliad; 
Archwilio; Tir ac Adeiladau (yn cynnwys 
Stadau, Mynwentydd, Rhandiroedd, 
Ffermydd); Cynnal a Chadw Eiddo; Swyddfa 
Ddigidol; Swyddfa Fasnachol

Consortiwm Prynu 
Prosiect Gwyrdd 
Cymru

Caerwent



S.B. Jones Gweithrediadau Sir
Cynnal a Chadw Priffyrdd, Rheoli 
Trafnidiaeth, Traffig a Rhwydwaith, Rheolaeth 
Stad; Gwastraff yn cynnwys Ailgylchu; 
Cyfleusterau Cyhoeddus; Meysydd Parcio; 
Parciau a Gofodau Agored; Glanhau; Cefn 
Gwlad; Tirluniau a Bioamrywiaeth; Risg 
Llifogydd.

SEWTA
Prosiect Gwyrdd

Goetre Fawr

S. Jones Cyfiawnder Cymdeithasol a Datblygu 
Cymunedol
Ymgysylltu â'r Gymuned; Amddifadedd ar 
Arwahanrwydd; Diogelwch y Gymuned; 
Cydlyniaeth Gymdeithasol; Tlodi; 
Cydraddoldeb; Amrywiaeth; Y Gymraeg; 
Cysylltiadau Cyhoeddus; Safonau Masnach; 
Iechyd yr Amgylchedd; Trwyddedu; 
Cyfathrebu

Llanofer



Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy

Ein diben
 
Adeiladu Cymunedau Cynaliadwy a Chydnerth
 
Amcanion y gweithiwn tuag atynt
 

 Rhoi'r dechrau gorau posibl mewn bywyd i bobl  
 Sir lewyrchus a chysylltiedig
 Cynyddu i'r eithaf botensial yr amgylchedd naturiol ac adeiledig
 Llesiant gydol oes
 Cyngor gyda ffocws ar y dyfodol

 
Ein Gwerthoedd
 
Bod yn agored. Rydym yn agored ac yn onest. Mae pobl yn cael cyfle i gymryd rhan mewn 
penderfyniadau sy'n effeithio arnynt, dweud beth sy'n bwysig iddynt a gwneud pethau 
drostynt eu hunain/eu cymunedau. Os na allwn wneud rhywbeth i helpu, byddwn yn dweud 
hynny; os bydd yn cymryd peth amser i gael yr ateb, byddwn yn esbonio pam; os na allwn 
ateb yn syth, byddwn yn ceisio eich cysylltu gyda'r bobl a all helpu - mae adeiladu 
ymddiriedaeth ac ymgysylltu yn sylfaen allweddol.

Tegwch. Darparwn gyfleoedd teg, i helpu pobl a chymunedau i ffynnu. Os nad yw rhywbeth 
yn ymddangos yn deg, byddwn yn gwrando ac yn esbonio pam. Byddwn bob amser yn 
ceisio trin pawb yn deg ac yn gyson. Ni allwn wneud pawb yn hapus bob amser, ond byddwn 
yn ymrwymo i wrando ac esbonio pam y gwnaethom weithredu fel y gwnaethom. 

Hyblygrwydd. Byddwn yn parhau i newid a bod yn hyblyg i alluogi cyflwyno'r gwasanaethau 
mwyaf effeithlon ac effeithiol. Mae hyn yn golygu ymrwymiad gwirioneddol i weithio gyda 
phawb i groesawu ffyrdd newydd o weithio.

Gwaith Tîm. Byddwn yn gweithio gyda chi a'n partneriaid i gefnogi ac ysbrydoli pawb i 
gymryd rhan fel y gallwn gyflawni pethau gwych gyda'n gilydd. Nid ydym yn gweld ein 
hunain fel 'trefnwyr' neu ddatryswyr problemau, ond gwnawn y gorau o syniadau, asedau ac 
adnoddau sydd ar gael i wneud yn siŵr ein bod yn gwneud y pethau sy'n cael yr effaith 
mwyaf cadarnhaol ar ein pobl a lleoedd.



1. PURPOSE:

This report seeks approval for the creation of a new fixed-term post within the Passenger 
Transport Unit to administer the Bus Services Support Grant. The post would be fixed-term and 
wholly externally funded.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 To approve the creation of a new fixed-term BSSG admin post

3. KEY ISSUES:

The Bus Services Support Grant (BSSG) is a grant paid by Welsh Government to five Welsh 
local authorities acting as regional lead authorities, to support and maintain the core strategic bus 
network, to improve bus quality standards, and for provision of certain bus, Community Transport 
and other local transport services.

Monmouthshire County Council is the current regional lead authority for BSSG for the Cardiff 
Capital Region (South East Wales). Following changes within Monmouthshire’s Passenger 
Transport Unit, a new full-time Bus Funding Project Support & Admin Officer is required to 
undertake the work. The position would be for a fixed-term period to 31 March 2019. The post 
would be funded from the BSSG admin.

4. REASONS:

Alternative options are for another council to take on the role of regional lead authority, or to 
refuse the BSSG grant offered to MCC by Welsh Government. Other councils have been asked 
but none is currently willing to take on this role. Refusal to accept the grant would mean that 
Cardiff Capital Region local authorities and bus operators would lose £11m, which could be 
expected to lead to a substantial reduction in the regional and local bus networks. 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

None. All costs would be paid out of the BSSG grant. The post will be set at Band E (SCP 21 – 
SCP 25, £20,541 – £23,111)

SUBJECT: RECRUITMENT OF BSSG ADMIN OFFICER

MEETING:            Individual Cabinet Member Decision
DATE:                      11th July 2018
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: all

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



6. WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS IMPLICATIONS (INCORPORATING 
EQUALITIES, SUSTAINABILITY, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING):

None direct. However failure to accept and administer the BSSG is likely to have substantial 
negative effects on regional and local bus services. For an analysis of the impact of this please 
see assessment of the Local Transport Plan

7. CONSULTEES:

 Kellie Beirne, Chief Officer Enterprise & Deputy CEO
 Mark Howcroft, Asst Head Of Finance
 Richard Cope, Business Manager Passenger Transport & Transport Planning
 Clare Cameron, Cardiff Capital Region Project Development Officer – Transport
 Cardiff Capital Region Transport Officers Group
 Cardiff Capital Region Bus Working Group
 Cardiff Capital Region Bus Funding Project Board

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS:

None

9. AUTHOR:

Christian Schmidt

10. CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 07471479238
E-mail: christianschmidt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 2



Appendix A

Name of the Officer -  Christian Schmidt
Phone no: 07471479238
E-mail: christianschmidt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal:

To seek approval for the creation of a new fixed-term post within the 
Passenger Transport Unit to administer the Bus Services Support Grant. The 
post would be fixed-term and wholly externally funded

Name of Service – Passenger Transport Unit Date Future Generations Evaluation – 25 June 2018

NB. Key strategies and documents that may help you identify your contribution to the wellbeing goals and sustainable 
development principles include: Single Integrated Plan, Continuance Agreement, Improvement Plan, Local Development Plan, 
People Strategy, Asset Management Plan, Green Infrastructure SPG, Welsh Language Standards, etc

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, 
together with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.  

Well Being Goal 

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs

No direct impact. Positive indirect impact: The Bus 
Services Support Grant (BSSG) is an essential 
component in maintaining and supporting the bus 
network across southeast Wales. Without BSSG 
there would be substantive negative impact on the 

The creation of a new fixed-term post to administer 
the BSSG will enable the continued operation of 
the grant and thus mitigate against the potential 
negative impacts

Future Generations Evaluation 
(includes Equalities and Sustainability Impact Assessments)

P
age 3



Well Being Goal 

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

bus network, and thus many people’s ability to 
access education and jobs without BSSG. 

A resilient Wales
Maintain and enhance biodiversity 
and ecosystems that support 
resilience and can adapt to change 
(e.g. climate change)

Neutral n/a

A healthier Wales
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximized and health 
impacts are understood

Neutral n/a

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe and well connected

No direct impact. Positive indirect impact: The 
BSSG is an essential component in maintaining 
and supporting the bus network across southeast 
Wales. Without BSSG there would be substantive 
negative impact on the bus network, thus reducing 
connectivity for many communities. 

The creation of a new fixed-term post to administer 
the BSSG will enable the continued operation of 
the grant and thus mitigate against the potential 
negative impacts

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and environmental 
wellbeing

No direct impact. Positive indirect impact: The 
BSSG is an essential component in maintaining 
and supporting the bus network across southeast 
Wales. Without BSSG there would be some 
negative environmental consequences because of 
modal shift buses towards single-occupancy car, 
and negative social consequences through reduced 
ability to access essential services by those that do 
not have any alternative. 

The creation of a new fixed-term post to administer 
the BSSG will enable the continued operation of 
the grant and thus mitigate against the potential 
negative impacts

P
age 4



Well Being Goal 

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language
Culture, heritage and Welsh language 
are promoted and protected.  People 
are encouraged to do sport, art and 
recreation

Neutral n/a

A more equal Wales
People can fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or 
circumstances

No direct impact. Positive indirect impact: The 
BSSG is an essential component in maintaining 
and supporting the bus network across southeast 
Wales. Without BSSG there would be some less 
opportunity to access key destinations for those 
that do not have any alternative. 

The creation of a new fixed-term post to administer 
the BSSG will enable the continued operation of 
the grant and thus mitigate against the potential 
negative impacts

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?
Sustainable 

Development Principle 
Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 

this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not 
explain why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

Balancing 
short term 
need with 
long term and 
planning for 
the future

No. The BSSG is an essential component in maintaining 
and supporting the bus network across southeast Wales, 
and a long-term solution to administrating the grant is 
required. 

Yes, discussions between Cardiff Capital Region 
councils concerning the long-term future of BSSG 
administration are underway.

P
age 5



Sustainable 
Development Principle 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not 

explain why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

Working 
together with 
other 
partners to 
deliver 
objectives 

Yes, the post is essential to continue to be able to liaise 
with key stakeholders. 

No

Involving 
those with 
an interest 
and 
seeking 
their views

Yes, the post is essential to continue to be able to liaise 
with key stakeholders. 

No

Putting 
resources 
into 
preventing 
problems 
occurring or 
getting 
worse

Yes, the post is essential to continue administrating the 
BSSG. 

Yes, discussions between Cardiff Capital Region 
councils concerning the long-term future of BSSG 
administration are underway.

P
age 6



Sustainable 
Development Principle 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not 

explain why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

Considering 
impact on 
all 
wellbeing 
goals 
together 
and on 
other 

bodies

Yes, the post is essential to continue administrating the 
BSSG, on which many stakeholder (esp. Community 
Transport operators) rely to enable to deliver their service

No

3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, 
the evidence you have used and any action you are taking below. For more detailed information on the protected characteristics, the 
Equality Act 2010 and the Welsh Language Standards that apply to Monmouthshire Council please follow this 
link:http://hub/corporatedocs/Equalities/Forms/AllItems.aspx  or contact Alan Burkitt on 01633 644010 or 
alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Protected 
Characteristics 

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts?

Age None direct. Some positive indirect effects 
as elderly and young people are key users 
and more reliant of bus services

P
age 7

http://hub/corporatedocs/Equalities/Forms/AllItems.aspx
mailto:alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk


Protected 
Characteristics 

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts?

Disability None direct. Some positive indirect effects 
as people with disabilities are key users and 
more reliant of CT and bus services

Gender 
reassignment

N/A.

Marriage or civil 
partnership

N/A

Pregnancy or 
maternity

N/A 

Race N/A

Religion or Belief N/A

Sex N/A

Sexual Orientation N/A

Welsh Language N/A

4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and 
safeguarding.  Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities?  For more information please see the guidance 
http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx  and for more on Monmouthshire’s Corporate 
Parenting Strategy see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

P
age 8

http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx


Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on safeguarding 
and corporate parenting

What will you do/ have you done 
to mitigate any negative impacts 
or better contribute to positive 
impacts?

Safeguarding N/A N/A

Corporate Parenting N/A N/A

5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

The post is essential to continue administrating the BSSG.

6. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have 
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

None direct. However failure to accept and administer the BSSG is likely to have substantial negative effects on regional and local bus services. For an 
analysis of the impact of this please see assessment of the Local Transport Plan

7. ACTIONS: As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, 
if applicable.

What are you going to do When are you going to do it? Who is responsible Progress 

P
age 9



8. MONITORING: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will 
evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on: 

9. VERSION CONTROL: The Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then 
honed and refined throughout the decision making process.  It is important to keep a record of this process so that we can 
demonstrate how we have considered and built in sustainable development wherever possible.

Version 
No.

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 
consideration

P
age 10



1. PURPOSE:

1.1 To inform the Cabinet Member of the new statutory requirement for Monmouthshire 
County Council to establish a Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) Approval Body 
(SAB) under Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 and to seek 
approval to establish a structure to deliver the SAB function.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 To consider the requirement to establish the SAB and approve the additional self-
funded posts, which will allow Monmouthshire County Council to deliver this new 
statutory function and keep the relevant local engineering knowledge and expertise 
within the Authority.

 

3.       KEY ISSUES:

3.1 Monmouthshire County Council are a Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) under the 
terms of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 and are responsible for what 
are termed local flood risks.  These include the risks of flooding from ordinary 
watercourses, surface water and ground water.

3.2 Surface water flooding poses an ever greater threat to our communities and has 
been identified in the National Strategy for Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk 
Management as one of the three main sources of flood risk, along with seas and 
rivers.  The impact on citizens and communities can be devastating and the cost to 
the Welsh economy significant.  The risk of flooding is on the rise owing to climate 
change and urbanisation.  In particular, local flooding due to the overloading of 
volume constrained drainage systems and sewers is of increasing concern.

3.3 Surface water can be effectively managed to reduce flood risk by Sustainable 
Drainage Systems (SuDS).  SuDS systems are alternative drainage systems to the 
more traditional piped systems, designed to mimic natural drainage in order to 
control the peak flow rate and volume of surface water runoff from a site through 
interception, attenuation and infiltration (where feasible), helping to reduce flood 
risk.  Typical SuDS features include but are not limited to green roofs, water butts, 
swales, detention basins, attenuation ponds and permeable paving.

SUBJECT: FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT ACT 2010 - SCHEDULE 3
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE SYSTEMS 
(SUDS) APPROVING BODY (SAB)

      
MEETING:         INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBER DECISION

DATE:         11th July 2018
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED:  All

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



3.4 Current drainage designs, particularly on new developments, often fail to deliver 
multiple benefits (for example, amenity, biodiversity and water quality) and offer only 
simple surface water management. 

3.5 Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 requires surface water 
drainage systems for new developments to comply with new mandatory National 
Standards for SuDS in Wales. These Standards will cover the design, construction, 
operation and maintenance of SuDS. It also requires surface water drainage 
systems to be approved by a SuDS Approving Body (SAB) before construction work 
with drainage implications may begin.  Provided the National Standards are met, the 
SAB would be required to adopt and maintain the approved SuDS that serve more 
than one property.  This can remove uncertainty over the design and adoption of 
surface water drainage systems which previously hampered new developments. 

3.6 Schedule 3 introduces a new statutory requirement for a SAB to be established by 
Local Authorities to manage surface water within future development.  Under the 
Act, most types of construction work with drainage applications will require SAB 
approval.  Schedule 3 specifies that construction work means the creation of 
buildings or other structures that cover land and which will affect the ability of the 
land to absorb rainwater. 

3.7 With the exception of single dwellings, all construction work requiring planning 
permission which has drainage implications should need approval.  For example, 
construction of two houses or a factory would require planning permission and has 
drainage implications and therefore needs approval.  Planning applications with no 
drainage implications would not need SAB approval.

3.8 Some types of construction work do not require planning permission (permitted 
development), although they can have significant drainage implications.  It is 
currently proposed that construction work which does not require planning 
permission but involves the construction of a building or other structure covering an 
area of land of 100m² or more should require SAB approval.  This would allow the 
vast majority of construction utilising permitted development rights to continue, but 
significant construction work with drainage implications may require SAB approval.

3.9 It is currently proposed that the following would be exempt from requiring SAB 
approval: nationally significant infrastructure projects, trunk roads & motorways 
managed by Welsh Government, works undertaken by an Internal Drainage Board 
(NRW) and construction of railways.

3.10 It is currently proposed that single dwellings will also be exempt from requiring SAB 
approval for two years following the implementation of Schedule 3.  Welsh 
Government have advised that a review will be undertaken in two years, when a 
decision will then be made whether to remove this exemption or not, which could 
result in single dwellings also requiring SAB approval.

3.11 Alongside their existing duties as LLFA, the 22 Local Authorities in Wales are 
responsible for the delivery of the SAB function.  Welsh Government made a 
Commencement Order in May 2018 which will implement the new SuDS approval 
process from 7th January 2019. 

Page 12



3.12 The SAB will be an independent body within the Local Authority, dealing with the 
technical statutory approval process and there will be a need to secure bonds, fees 
and service charges for the sustainable and ongoing maintenance of SuDS 
schemes.

3.13 Additionally, SuDS schemes will need to be inspected by the SAB during 
construction, to ensure they are built to the appropriate standard with the specified 
or suitable materials, and once in operation, to ensure they are properly maintained 
and not damaged. The SAB may charge an inspection fee which is currently 
proposed to be £60 per inspection.

3.14 SuDS systems which meet the specified adoption criteria must be adopted by the 
SAB. Adoption by the SAB will be via a bespoke legal agreement. The SAB will 
require payment of a commuted sum or maintenance charge which is reflective of 
the maintenance / replacement plan for the lifetime of the development.

3.15 The SAB, as an independent body within the Local Authority, will deal with a 
technical statutory approval process and be able to charge for services within this 
process. Examples of chargeable aspects are:

 SAB Pre-Applications – This is a key function of the SAB to engage with 
developers for technical pre-application discussions. This will steer 
developments to comply with the National Standards. When Schedule 3 is 
implemented the SAB will be able to charge for pre-application comments. It 
should be noted that SAB pre-application is limited to a high level overview. 
Detailed comments will be provided at the Outline/Full application stage. The 
SAB may charge for pre-application discussions, if they wish, under powers 
given to them in Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003.  Such a 
charging scheme for pre application discussions, meetings and site meetings 
similar to that used in Planning, will be developed to cover costs incurred by 
the SAB. 

 Outline/Full applications – Under the current proposal by Welsh Government 
two properties or above (or development above 100m² or with drainage 
implications) would require SAB approval. This process is chargeable at rates 
set by Welsh Government. Application costs start from £350 (minimum) with 
an additional amount up to £7,500 (maximum) calculated by reference to the 
size of the construction area. 

 Inspection of assets – SuDS schemes will need to be inspected by the SAB 
during construction, to ensure they are built to an appropriate standard.  The 
SAB may charge an inspection fee which is currently proposed to be £60 per 
inspection. 

 Adoption arrangement – SuDS which meet the specified adoption criteria 
must be adopted by the SAB. Adoption by the SAB will be via a bespoke legal 
agreement and commuted sums or maintenance charges which reflect the 
maintenance / replacement plan that will be required for the lifetime of the 
development.

4       REASONS: 

Page 13



4.1 To ensure Monmouthshire County Council meets its statutory requirement under 
Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 to deliver the SAB and 
achieve multiple benefits including improvements to amenities, biodiversity and 
water quality.

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:  

5.1 The above new duties will create significant new demands on existing resources.  
As this is a new statutory function, the current organisational structure is not 
sufficient to meet the requirements of Schedule 3 and the delivery of the SAB 
function with existing resources.  Therefore, additional staff and expertise will be 
required to deliver this service.

5.2 In order to deliver the new statutory function of the SAB there will be a requirement 
for the additional posts of Senior Engineer and Technician/Admin Officer within the 
Highways and Flood Management Team.  These posts would supplement the 
existing Flood Risk Management Team resource and would cover the technical and 
administration duties required by the SAB.  

Total Costs (including overheads): 
Senior Engineer SCP38 – SCP41  (£34,106 - £37,107)
Technician/Admin Officer – SCP18 - SCP21 (£18,870 - £20,541)
Total (Max): £50,450 

In addition to the above, consideration will need to be given to the additional duties 
of the Project Engineer (Flood Risk Manager) and furthermore all posts within the 
team require assessment in accordance with the council’s job evaluation scheme.

5.3 It will be necessary for these new posts to be in place by the implementation date 
of the new legislation on 7th January 2019.  Should any delays be experienced in 
recruiting the new staff members, additional support would be required and sought 
through the current Engineering Services Consultancy Framework Agreement.  
This would be a temporary measure until the required permanent staff are in place 
and would be funded through the receipt of SAB application fees.

5.4 There will be a chargeable fee for drainage applications ranging from £350 - £7500 
depending on the size of the development.  Based on the number and size of 
planning applications received over the last two years (2016 & 2017) that would 
have required SAB approval, it is estimated that the SAB would receive income from 
application fees of approximately £57,000 per annum.  The SAB will also be able to 
charge fees for pre-application advice and for inspections during the construction 
phase, which is anticipated to generate an additional revenue income of 
approximately £8,000.  Therefore the total income generated from the SAB is 
estimated at £65,000 and will cover the costs and overhead of the delivery of this 
statutory function.

5.5 It is proposed to develop a detailed pre-application charging scheme proportional to 
the size of the development similar to that used in Planning.  This will be developed 
in consultation with other Local Authorities & SABs to ensure a consistent approach 
across Wales.

Page 14



5.6 Welsh Government have indicated that a review will take place of the new SuDS 
legislation after 2 years.  At this stage the exemption for single dwellings may be 
removed.  Should this occur, the SAB would experience an approximate 100% 
increase in the number of applications based on the figures from the 2016/2017 
review of planning applications.   These additional applications would result in 
another significant increase in workload and will require a further review of the 
staffing resources at that time.  

5.7 The proposed new members of staff and existing staff within the Flood Risk 
Management Team will require additional specific training to deliver the new SAB 
duties and to ensure robust coverage of the new function.  Welsh Government have 
advised that there will be no additional funding for Local Authorities to deliver this 
role, therefore costs associated with this training will need to be met by existing 
budgets.

5.8 In order to administer SAB applications as efficiently as possible, a specialist 
software package will be required.  It is proposed to utilise the Uniform system which 
is a specific SAB module of the current MCC Planning software to manage planning 
applications.  This module will be used to register, store and process documents 
relating to SAB applications, much in the same way Planning applications are 
processed.  The cost of this system will be met from existing Welsh Government 
Flood grant funding and will be as follows:
- SuDS Module Software: £3000
- Set up and configuration: £1250
- 1 days training (up to 6 delegates): £1,250
- IDOX Electronic Data Management System Integration: £2,000
- Total Cost: £8,000

There will be an annual maintenance cost of £600.
 

6 CONSULTEES: 

6.1 Senior Leadership Team

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS:

7.1 Flood Risk Management Strategy 2013
Flood Risk Management Plan 2016

8 Equality Impact Assessment

8.1 The establishment of SuDS Approving Body (SAB) under the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 will ensure sustainable drainage systems are implemented 
on new developments throughout Monmouthshire. As well as reducing flood risk, 
the SAB will ensure that future developments with flood implications will be designed 
to enhance the local environment and provide multiple benefits i.e. water quality, 

Page 15



amenity & biodiversity.  Such enhancements will improve flood resilience to local 
communities & businesses and provide a richer landscape in which local economies 
can thrive. 

8.2 The Future Generations Evaluation is shown in appendix A for members’ 
consideration.

9 AUTHOR:

Paul Keeble
Group Engineer (Highway & Flood Management)

10 CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel:          01633 644733
E-mail:     paulkeeble@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 16

mailto:paulkeeble@monmouthshire.gov.uk


Appendix A

Page 17



Name of the Officer -  Paul Keeble
Phone no: 01633 644873
E-mail: paulkeeble@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal:

To inform the Cabinet Member of the new statutory requirement for 
Monmouthshire County Council to establish a Sustainable Drainage 
Systems (SuDS) Approval Body (SAB) under Schedule 3 of the Flood 
and Water Management Act 2010 and to seek approval to establish a 
structure to deliver the SAB function. 

Name of Service – Highways and Flood Management Date Future Generations Evaluation – 11/04/2018

NB. Key strategies and documents that may help you identify your contribution to the wellbeing goals and sustainable 
development principles include: Single Integrated Plan, Continuance Agreement, Improvement Plan, Local Development Plan, 
People Strategy, Asset Management Plan, Green Infrastructure SPG, Welsh Language Standards, etc

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, 
together with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.  

Well Being Goal 

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

Future Generations Evaluation 
(includes Equalities and Sustainability Impact Assessments)

P
age 18



Well Being Goal 

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs

Positive Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water Management 
Act 2010 will ensure sustainable drainage systems 
(SuDS) are implemented on new developments in 
Wales.  As well as reducing flood risk, these SuDS 
will enhance the local environment and provide 
multiple benefits i.e. water quality, amenity & 
biodiversity.  Such enhancements will improve 
flood resilience to local communities & businesses 
and provide a richer landscape in which local 
economies can thrive. By internal departments 
working closely to deliver the SuDS Approving 
Body (SAB) role, efficiencies and effective use of 
resources will be released.  

A resilient Wales
Maintain and enhance biodiversity 
and ecosystems that support 
resilience and can adapt to change 
(e.g. climate change)

Positive Sustainable drainage will aim to mimic natural 
drainage systems by controlling water as close to 
the source and surface as possible.  The design of 
SuDS will take into account climate change and 
provide multiple benefits in the form of improving 
water quality, enhancing amenity areas and 
provide greater biodiversity opportunities.  By 
reducing flood risk, the new statutory function and 
resultant SuDS will enable local businesses and 
communities to be more resilient.

A healthier Wales
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximized and health 
impacts are understood

Positive The mandatory implementation of SuDS on new 
development will help to ease the mental worry 
and stress that the fear of flooding can being upon 
residents and communities as a whole.  Creating 

P
age 19



Well Being Goal 

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

greener environments which use water to enhance 
features within public areas, will enhance peoples 
health and feeling of well-being, and help 
encourage people to access these areas and wider 
outdoor environment. 

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe and well connected

Positive SuDS will help create more attractive outdoor 
landscapes and improve accessibility to greener 
environments within communities.

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and environmental 
wellbeing

Positive The promotion and mandatory implementation of 
SuDS will ensure future developments are more 
sustainable and provide multiple benefits.

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language
Culture, heritage and Welsh language 
are promoted and protected.  People 
are encouraged to do sport, art and 
recreation

Neutral

A more equal Wales
People can fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or 
circumstances

Neutral

P
age 20



2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?
Sustainable 

Development Principle 
Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 

this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not 
explain why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

Balancing 
short term 
need with 
long term and 
planning for 
the future

Yes The new statutory duty will ensure long term 
benefits by making the provision of SuDS 
mandatory new developments.

Working 
together with 
other 
partners to 
deliver 
objectives 

Yes Close working arrangements with internal & 
external partners will be an essential component of 
the SuDS approval process.

Involving 
those with 
an interest 
and 
seeking 
their views

Yes The new statutory function has been subject of a 
number of national consultations and workshops 
involving originations concerned.   The new SuDS 
Approving Body (SAB) will liaise and consult with a 
number of external & internal partners as part of the 
approval process.

P
age 21



Sustainable 
Development Principle 

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not 

explain why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts?

Putting 
resources 
into 
preventing 
problems 
occurring or 
getting 
worse

Yes The attached report identifies the anticipated work 
load this new statutory duty will bring and the level 
of resource required to successfully deliver the 
function. 

Considering 
impact on 
all 
wellbeing 
goals 
together 
and on 
other 

bodies

N/A

3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, 
the evidence you have used and any action you are taking below. For more detailed information on the protected characteristics, the 
Equality Act 2010 and the Welsh Language Standards that apply to Monmouthshire Council please follow this 
link:http://hub/corporatedocs/Equalities/Forms/AllItems.aspx  or contact Alan Burkitt on 01633 644010 or 
alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

P
age 22

http://hub/corporatedocs/Equalities/Forms/AllItems.aspx
mailto:alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk


Protected 
Characteristics 

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts?

Age N/A 

Disability N/A

Gender 
reassignment

N/A.

Marriage or civil 
partnership

N/A

Pregnancy or 
maternity

N/A 

Race N/A

Religion or Belief N/A

Sex N/A

Sexual Orientation N/A

Welsh Language N/A

4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and 
safeguarding.  Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities?  For more information please see the guidance 
http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx  and for more on Monmouthshire’s Corporate 
Parenting Strategy see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

P
age 23

http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx


Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on safeguarding 
and corporate parenting

What will you do/ have you done 
to mitigate any negative impacts 
or better contribute to positive 
impacts?

Safeguarding N/A N/A

Corporate Parenting N/A N/A

5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

The proposal as set out in the attached report is required to meet the new statutory function as a result of Welsh Government implementing Schedule 3 of 
the Flood and Water Management Act 2010.

6. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have 
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

The proposal has identified the positive impacts that will be achieved following the implementation of Schedule 3 and how SuDS will meet the Well Being 
Goals ands sustainable governance principles.

P
age 24



7. ACTIONS: As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, 
if applicable.

What are you going to do When are you going to do it? Who is responsible Progress 

8. MONITORING: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will 
evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on: Once set up, the SuDS Approving Body will be regularly monitored to 
ensure we are meeting the requirements of the new legislation.  
Reporting to Welsh Government on progress will also be a 
requirement.

9. VERSION CONTROL: The Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then 
honed and refined throughout the decision making process.  It is important to keep a record of this process so that we can 
demonstrate how we have considered and built in sustainable development wherever possible.

Version 
No.

Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 
consideration

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 RECRIWTIO SWYDDOG GWEINYDDU GCGB
	1a. BSSG job - cabinet report appendix v0-2

	2 DEDDF RHEOLI LLIFOGYDD A D?R 210 - AMSERLEN 3 - GWEITHREDU'R CORFF CYMERADWYO (SAB) DROS SYSTEMAU DRAENIO CYNALIADWY (SuDS)

